
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
Issued on: Tuesday, 25 October 2022 
 
Governance Services Officer for this meeting:   Amber Torrington 

01302 737462 
 
Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council 
 
www.doncaster.gov.uk 
 

 

 
Agenda 
 
 
To all Members of the 

 

CABINET 
 

Notice is given that a Meeting of the Cabinet is to be held as follows: 
  

Venue: Council Chamber, Civic Office, Waterdale, Doncaster DN1 3BU  
 
Date:  Wednesday, 2nd November, 2022 
 
Time: 10.00 am 
 

 
BROADCASTING NOTICE 
 
This meeting is being recorded for subsequent broadcast via the Council’s 
web site.  
 
The Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act and images 
collected during this recording will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy.  
 
Please be aware that by entering the meeting, you accept that you may be 
recorded and the recording used for the purpose set out above. 
 
Damian Allen 
Chief Executive 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
 
Items 
  
1. Apologies for Absence.   
 
2. To consider the extent, if any, to which the public and press are to be 

excluded from the meeting.  
 

 
3. Public Questions and Statements.   
 (A period not exceeding 20 minutes for questions and 

statements from members of the public and Elected Members to 
the Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones. Questions/Statements 
should relate specifically to an item of business on the agenda 
and be limited to a maximum of 100 words. As stated within 
Executive Procedure Rule 3.3 each person will be allowed to 
submit one question/statement per meeting. A question may 
only be asked if notice has been given by e-mail to the 
Governance Team no later than 5.00pm on Friday, 28th October 
2022. Each question or statement must give the name and 
address of the person submitting it. Questions/Statements 
should be sent to the Governance Team, Floor 2, Civic Office, 
Waterdale, Doncaster, DN1 3BU, or by email to 
Democratic.Services@doncaster.gov.uk). 
 

 

 
4. Declarations of Interest, if any.   
 
5. Decision Record Forms from the meeting held on 19th October 2022 

for noting (previously circulated). 
 

 
A.     Reports where the public and press may not be excluded 
 

 
 

Key Decisions   
6. Approval to Receive Safer Streets (Round Four) Grant Funding from 

the Home Office.  
1 - 10 

 
7. To approve the commencement of a Compulsory Purchase Order for 

the acquisition of properties necessary to deliver the Doncaster Town 
Deal project. (Appendix 1 to the report is not for publication because 
it contains exempt information by Virtue of Paragraph 3, of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, as if 
it contains exempt information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information.)  

11 - 36 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Cabinet Members 
 
Cabinet Responsibility For: 
 
Chair – Ros Jones, Mayor of 
Doncaster 

Budget and Policy Framework 

   
Vice-Chair – Deputy Mayor 
Councillor Glyn Jones 

Housing and Business  

 
Councillor Lani-Mae Ball Portfolio Holder for Education, Skills and 

Young People 
Councillor Nigel Ball Portfolio Holder for Public Health, Leisure, 

Culture and Planning 
Councillor Joe Blackham Portfolio Holder for Highways, Infrastructure 

and Enforcement 
Councillor Rachael Blake Portfolio Holder for Children’s Social Care, 

Communities and Equalities 
Councillor Phil Cole Portfolio Holder for Finance and Trading 

Services 
Councillor Mark Houlbrook Portfolio Holder for Sustainability and Waste 
Councillor Jane Nightingale Portfolio Holder for Corporate Resources 
Councillor Andrea Robinson Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report 
 
 

Date: 2nd November 2022 

To the Chair and Members of the Cabinet 

Approval to Receive Safer Streets (Round Four) Grant Funding from the Home 
Office 

Relevant Cabinet 
Member(s) 

Wards Affected Key Decision? 

Councillor Rachael Blake All wards Yes 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1. Doncaster has been notified that the application for Safer Streets (Round Four) 
Home Office funding has been successful and the City has been awarded 
£750,000, which is the largest amount awarded to any single Council in South 
Yorkshire.   
 

2. The grant funding will support various CCTV, solar lighting and educational 
schemes across the borough (see appendix a). These schemes were identified 
in consultation with a range of stakeholders and will greatly enhance the city’s 
CCTV and lighting infrastructure and importantly assist in tackling neighbourhood 
crime, anti-social behaviour and Violence against Women and Girls (VAWG) as 
set out in the criteria of the grant.  

 
3. A designated project team has been established to ensure that the individual 

projects are delivered within the timescales set out in the grant criteria. Also 
ensuring that projects are monitored, and any potential risks are identified 
mitigated and escalated where necessary. Progress reports will be compiled and 
delivered to the Safer Doncaster Partnership (SSDP) at regular intervals. 

 

EXEMPT REPORT 

4. This is not an exempt report. 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6.



 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

5. To note the content of the report and to accept receipt of the £750k Safer Streets 
(Round 4) Grant Fund from The Home Office. 
 

6. To note the schedule of projects in (Appendix A) which were all identified and 
agreed in consultation with stakeholders including Local Ward Members and 
further informed by data analysis. 

 

WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER? 

7. Reducing neighbourhood crime, anti-social behaviour and tackling violence 
against women and girls (VAWG) is a priority within the Doncaster Community 
Safety Strategy. Using this funding we will improve the quality of life for citizens 
in the local community and contribute to the public feeling safer in vulnerable 
locations, such as parks and open spaces. 
 

BACKGROUND 

8. We have received notification from the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner that Doncaster will receive £750k of funding from the fourth round 
of the Home Office Safer Streets fund.  

 
9. Doncaster City submitted a single bid as part of a wider countywide process 

alongside Sheffield, Rotherham and Barnsley Councils. The bid was quality 
assured by the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner before being 
forwarded to the Home Office. 

 

10. Each Local Authority area was able to submit a bid up to a maximum of £750,000, 
which would be split over 2 consecutive years (£500,000 in the first year and a 
further £250,000 over the period ending in September 2023).  

 

11. Doncaster’s bid was to the value of the maximum amount of £750k and 
represents the highest award to a single council within South Yorkshire. Included 
in our bid was a 50% match funding element and this includes officer time, 
existing investment e.g. future parks funding, or costs for monitoring and 
maintaining CCTV cameras. 

 

12. The primary focus of the new fund was based on the three specific criteria’s 
specified as follows: 

   
Tackling Neighbourhood Crime,  
Violence against Women and Girls,  
Anti-Social Behaviour.  

 
Doncaster’s bid incorporated all three of these elements and focused upon a 

Page 2



number of areas across the City, which were chosen through engagement and 
consultation with Localities, Lead Ward Members and Area Managers.  
 

13. Part of the funding will include installation of lighting and CCTV, which will assist 
in improving perceptions of safety and help to detect and reduce anti-social 
behaviour and neighbourhood crime. The additional CCTV will align with the 
wider strategic objective to improve CCTV throughout Doncaster. All locality 
areas will benefit from the 52 new cameras funded through this scheme. 
 

14. In addition, the funding will provide highway improvements, in the area of Lower 
Wheatley and Thorne Road, an area identified as suffering from high levels of 
crime, perceptions of safety and anti-social behaviour. 

 
15. In addition, across the City, there will be a programme established to deliver safer 

streets training to key partners and an exciting youth coaching programme in 
schools to tackle youth related anti-social behaviour focused on young people 
aged 10 to 17.  

 
16. In terms of administering and monitoring the funding, we have established a 

stakeholder group to consult and approve the key elements of the scheme. 
Regular progress reports will be provided to the Safer Stronger Doncaster 
Partnership (SSDP) and each locality area. 

 
17. As with previous awards from the Home Office Safer Streets Fund, there are tight 

timescales, which we will need to follow. All the funding has to be spent by 30th 
September 2023 and there is a requirement to deliver the requisite amount of 
match funding by March 2024.  

 

OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

18. Present a business case to the Senior Management Team seeking approval to 
use grant funding from the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner in a 
specified way. 

 

Option 1: Do Nothing 

19. This is not viewed as a viable option, as without the required approval to use 
grant funding in this way; we may risk non-compliance with financial regulations.  
Should we not take up the option to utilise this funding, it would mean that a 
number of important projects for this area would not go ahead. 

 

Option 2: Seek approval to use the grant funding received from the OPCC for 
the purpose specified in this report. 

 

 

Page 3



REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION 

20. The additional grant funding would enable the Council and our partners to deliver 
on our key priorities, respond to emerging challenges and facilitate our ability to 
support local initiatives and activities. It would also enable the Council and SSDP 
to continue to tackle the key priorities identified within the Community Safety 
strategy and our Great 8 priorities, detailed below:  

 

•  Creating Safer, Stronger, Greener and Cleaner Communities; 
•    Protecting Vulnerable People; 
•   Reducing Anti-Social Behaviour; 
•   Reducing Crime and Re-offending; 
•    Tackling Serious and Organised Crime; 

 

IMPACT ON THE COUNCIL’S KEY OUTCOMES 

21.   

Great 8 Priority  Positive 
Overall 

Mix of 
Positive & 
Negative 

Trade-
offs to 

consider 
– 

Negative 
overall 

Neutral or 
No 

implications 

 
Tackling Climate 
Change     

The Investment in solar lighting in parks will reduce carbon emissions, and 
enhance green paces, making them more accessible and safer spaces for all. 

 
Developing the skills 
to thrive in life and in 
work 

    
 

 Making Doncaster the 
best  
place to do business 
and create good jobs 

    
Many parks and open spaces are part of the leisure offer within Doncaster and 
help to boost the number of visitors and tourists into our new city. Therefore the 
changes we are making to local parks and open spaces can only have a positive 
benefit to local businesses and securing local jobs linked to the leisure offer. 

 

Page 4



 Building opportunities 
for  
healthier, happier and 
longer lives for all 

    
Encouraging the public to use our parks and open spaces will create opportunities 
for everyone to enjoy the outdoors, promoting healthier, happier and longer lives 
for all. 
 
 Creating safer, 

stronger,  
greener and cleaner  
communities where 
everyone belongs 

    
The project aims to improve lighting and cctv in parks and open spaces and 
across the Borough we will be running a programme in schools across Doncaster 
to raise awareness of the impact of anti-social behaviour. These projects will 
significantly contribute to creating safer and stronger communites. 

 
  
Nurturing a child and  
family-friendly 
borough 

    
CCTV and improved lighting will encourage children, young people and parents to 
enjoy our parks and open spaces for family activities and sport nurturing our child 
and family friendly borough. 
 
 Building Transport 

and digital 
connections fit for the 
future 

    
 

 Promoting the 
borough and its 
cultural, sporting, and 
heritage opportunities 

    
The installation of improved lighting and CCTV cameras in parks and open spaces 
will enable members of the public to use these facilities during darker evenings 
and will contribute to an improved feeling of safety. 

Fair & Inclusive     

Page 5



 

 

Legal Implications [Officer Initials: SRF | Date: 22.08.22] 

22. Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 provides the Council with a general power of 
competence, allowing the Council to do anything that individuals generally may 
do. Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 gives the Council power to 
purchase goods and services.  

 
23. The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 makes it clear that tackling crime should be a 

partnership matter, with key local organisations working together to achieve a 
shared strategy for the benefit of local communities.  
 

24. The purchase of any goods and services using the funding should be carried out 
in accordance with funder requirements & the Council’s Contract Procedure 
Rules. 
 

25. Legal advice should be sought upon the grant agreement. 
 

Financial Implications [Officer Initials: CS | Date: 25.08.22] 

26. Acceptance of the £750k grant is subject to key decision rules and will need to 
be approved by CFO and relevant director as per Financial Procedure Rule E.9 
“Directors are authorised to apply for external funding, in consultation with the 
CFO, which contribute to the delivery of Council services or achievement of 
Council goals. Grant acceptance and/or commitment is subject to key decision 
rules”. 

 

27. The total proposed grant is £750k, £500k will be funded in 22/23 and must be 
spent by 31st March 23 and £250k will be funded in 23/24 and must be spent by  
30th September 23. The proposed grant will be fully funded from the Home Office 
Safer Streets Fund and a signed agreement is required to accept the funding. 
There is a 50% match funding element which will be provided by officer time, 
existing investment e.g. future parks funding, or costs for monitoring and 
maintaining CCTV cameras, this must be spent by 31st March 2024. The service 
will need to ensure the timescales are managed in accordance with the grant 
conditions in order to avoid the council incurring costs that they are unable to 
claim for. Grant claims must be submitted each quarter by the 14th of the following 
month. 

 

28. There are two elements to the funding, revenue and capital. 

Capital 

29. The capital cost amount is £550k for the installation of CCTV along with other 
crime/anti-social behaviour reduction tools and highway improvements as stated 

Page 6



in the body of this report. Contingency hasn’t been included in these figures as 
they are based on quotes from the framework agreement. 

 

30. As the Adults Health and Wellbeing Capital Programme does not currently 
include this scheme as per Financial Procedure Rule B.9. The CFO is responsible 
for agreeing any in-year additions to the capital programme. Following the CFO 
agreement and before any commitment to spend, a project specific report in line 
with key decision rules is required to approve the capital project for inclusion in 
the capital programme. Approval is sought in this report. A CAP1 form has been 
submitted and circulated to CAMP Board members.   

 

Revenue 

31. The revenue cost amount is £200k for delivering safer streets training to key 
partners to tackle youth related anti-social behaviour as stated in the body of this 
report.  

 
32. The on-going maintenance costs are initially expected to be minimal but could 

equate to £1k per year per camera per annum. This will need to be funded from 
existing revenue budgets within community safety. 

 
Human Resources Implications [Officer Initials: SB | Date: 19.08.22] 

33. There are no HR implications associated within this report.  
 

Technology Implications [Officer Initials: PW | Date: 22.08.22] 

34. There are no technology implications in relation to the receipt of grant funding 
from the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) following the 
successful award of the safer streets (Round 4) funding from the Home Office.  
However, it is essential that Digital & ICT continue to be fully involved (via the 
TGB process) in all new CCTV projects to agree on the proposed designs and 
logical and physical security etc. 

 
Health Implications [Officer Initials: RS | Date: 19.08.22] 
 
35. Safety and the perception of safety have direct and indirect impacts on health. 

This funding should help address these issues. Decision makers will want to 
assure themselves that the impacts of the funding are monitored and that the 
funding addresses the areas most effected by neighbourhood crime, violence 
against women and girls and anti-social behaviour. 

 
 
Equality Implications [Officer Initials: BH | Date: 12.08.22] 
 
36.Equality impact assessments completed during the development of the 

Community Safety Strategy and other key partnership strategies identified that 
the Partnership and DMBC deliver key services to under-represented groups and 
individuals with protected characteristics. 

 

Page 7



37. The proposals for use of this grant funding enables the Partnership and ourselves 
as a public authority to discharge our responsibilities effectively within the terms 
of the Equality Act, ensuring that our services do not tolerate prohibited 
behaviours and we actively work to reduce discrimination, advance equality of 
opportunity and the fostering of good relations. 

 

RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

38. The potential risks of the project are failing to complete the planned work before 
the funding deadline of 30th September 2023. To mitigate this, a project 
coordinator has already been appointed for each area and a wider project group 
from all involved services has been established, supported by a full project plan. 

 

CONSULTATION 

39. The cabinet lead for Community Safety, Councillor Rachael Blake, has been 
consulted on the proposal, alongside lead locality ward members. 
 

40. Regular updates regarding the grant activity will be provided to the Office of the 
Police and Crime Commissioner by the stakeholder group. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

41. Appendix of background information. 
 

GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

42. OPCC – Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
VAWG – Violence Against Women and Girls 

 

REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTORS  

Bill Hotchkiss, Head of Communities Safer Stronger 

01302 737831 | bill.hotchkiss@doncaster.gov.uk 

Phil Holmes 

Director of Adults, Health and Wellbeing (DASS) 

Page 8



Appendices 

Safer Streets Round 4 
(Background Information) 

  

The total bid is worth £750,000, which will be used to develop projects across Doncaster, based 
upon the three criteria of tackling neighbourhood crime, anti-social behaviour and violence against 
women and girls. 

Our successful bid focused upon CCTV and lighting schemes in parks and public spaces, which were 
identified from our consultations and analysis, as being areas where the public (particularly Women 
and Girls) felt unsafe. Using the Home Office funding we will also be able to further develop youth 
diversionary schemes in areas affected by anti-social behaviour and educational programmes in 
schools across Doncaster to raise awareness of the impact of anti-social behaviour. 

 Project leads have been identified, enabling us to commence the various projects across the 
Borough. Each of the project leads (referenced in the table below) will be in a position to update 
elected members on the progress of projects in their areas. Marcus Isman-Egal is the lead for the 
Boroughwide project working with young people in schools. 

 

 Area Project Lead Summary of Projects 

North Ashley Evans Carcroft Park 

• Additional solar lighting on footpaths  
• Increased CCTV coverage in priority locations 

 

Great North Road Woodlands Corridor 

• Increased CCTV coverage in areas identified 
as key locations for ASB and perceptions of 
safety 

South Steve Thomas Conisborough Town Centre 

• Extension of existing CCTV network to include 
vulnerable areas where the public feel unsafe. 

Bawtry Town Centre 

• Working with local businesses to develop a 
safer streets pilot area, using the principals of 
purple flag and supported by CCTV assets at 
key locations. 

 

Page 9



East Kim Markham Stainforth Village New Park  Estate, Hatfield Jubilee 
Field, Dunscroft Playing Fields, Edenthorpe Hall School 
and Armthorpe Village 

• Increased CCTV coverage in areas identified 
as key locations for ASB and perceptions of 
safety 
 

Central Joanne Evans Lower Wheatley/  Thorne Road 

• Additional solar lighting on footpaths traversing 
town fields. 

• Increased CCTV coverage in priority locations  
• Highways re-design to route vehicles through 

CCTV/ANPR channels in areas used by kerb 
crawlers 

• Alleygates 
• Removal of solid wall at Pocket Park and 

replacement railings 
 

Wheatley and Intake MUGAs, Clay Lane Park,Grove 
Park and Sandal Park 

• Increased CCTV coverage and improved 
lighting in key locations 

Boroughwide Marcus Isman-
Egal 

Young People Support Services Tackling Boroughwide 
ASB 

• Development of a Youth Diversionary scheme 
targeting hotspots 
 

• Educational products and programmes 
focussed on attitudinal/behavioural change, 
raising awareness of the impact of ASB on the 
local community and victims. 
 

• Working with our Youth Council at 
DCST/DMBC we will develop advocate 
training programme for young people to act as 
ASB ambassadors/coaches/peer mentors to 
promote inclusive and positive environments 
as part of our community prevention strategy 
in schools. 

 

 

 

Page 10



 
 

Report 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 

2nd November 2022 
                    

 
To the Chair and Members of the CABINET  
 
 
To approve the commencement of a Compulsory Purchase Order for the 
acquisition of properties necessary to deliver the Doncaster Town Deal 
projects. 
 
 
Relevant Cabinet 
Member(s) 

Wards Affected Key Decision 

 
Cllr Glyn Jones  
Portfolio Holder for 
Housing and Business. 
 
 

 
Town 

 
Yes 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.0 This report sets out the requirement for the Council to have the ability to 

acquire key strategic properties to facilitate the delivery of the Doncaster 
Towns Deal projects and seeks approval to commence a formal Compulsory 
Purchase Order (“CPO”) in this regard. 

 
1.1 At its meeting on 8th June 2022 Cabinet approved the submission to the 

Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (“DLUHC”) of the 
Project Summary Business Cases for the Station Gateway Projects (Project A 
– Railway Square Extension and Project B – New Multi-Use Building and 
Associated Public Realm), confirming the intention of Doncaster Council to 
secure a combined £24,239,000 Town Deal funding towards the delivery of 
the schemes. These have now been approved and the funding for the projects 
has been released accordingly for use on delivery of the projects. 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7.



| 

1.2 In addition, Cabinet delegated authority to the Director of Economy and 
Environment, in consultation with the Director of Corporate Services, to 
acquire by agreement with landowner, the property and land required for the 
construction of the Station Gateway projects. 
 

1.3 The proposed site locations for the Railway Square Extension and the New 
Multi-Use Building and Associated Public Realm schemes as outlined on 
attached plan drawing (the “Site”) are currently occupied by privately owned 
properties, including an office development, a retail wholesaler and a vacant 
property. 

 
1.4 The Council’s Assets team has commenced discussions with the owners of 

the three target properties. Negotiations are progressing well in most cases 
and are continuing. However, to ensure that any land or interests that cannot 
be acquired by agreement are available for the start of construction, a CPO 
will be prepared in parallel. 

 
1.5 The justification for the CPO will be outlined in the Statement of Reasons 

which is summarised within this report. Subject to Cabinet’s approval it is the 
intended to formally commence the CPO process in November following the 
Cabinet call in period. A potential timetable for the CPO process is outlined in 
this report. 

 
EXEMPT REPORT 

2.0 Whilst this report is not exempt it does contain an exempt Appendix 1. 
Appendix 1 is not for publication because it contains exempt information by 
Virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972, as amended, as if it contains exempt information relating to the financial 
or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.0 Cabinet is recommended to: 
 

3.1 Authorise the making of a CPO under section 226(1)(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 (“TCPA 1990") within the area edged red on the 
draft Order Map for the purposes of facilitating development, redevelopment, 
and improvement of the Site; and, 

3.2 Authorise the Director of Economy and Environment in consultation with the 
Director of Corporate Services, following consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Housing and Business, to effect the making, confirmation, and 
implementation of the CPO and to take all necessary steps to give effect to 
the CPO in respect of the Order Land including, but not limited to, the 
following procedural steps: 

(a) finalise a Statement of Reasons setting out the Council's reasons for 

Page 12



| 

making the CPO; 

(b) making the CPO, the publication and service of any press, site and 
individual notices and other correspondence for such making; 

(c) acquire all interests and new rights within the Order Land as may be   
necessary to facilitate the Scheme, either by agreement or compulsorily, 
including entering into negotiations with any third parties for the acquisition 
of their land interests; the payment of compensation and dealing with any 
blight notices served in connection with the CPO; 

(d) approve agreements with landowners or statutory undertakers as 
applicable, setting out the terms for withdrawal of any objections to the 
CPO, including where appropriate seeking exclusion of land from the CPO; 

(e) make any necessary additions, deletions, or amendments to the Order 
Land and to seek any requisite modifications to the CPO Order and any 
CPO maps. 

(f) the preparation and presentation of the Council's case at any Public Inquiry 
which may be necessary. 

(g) seek confirmation of the CPO by the Secretary of State (or, if permitted, by 
the Council pursuant to Section 14A of the Acquisition of Land Act 1981) 
(the 1981 Act); 

(h) publication and service of notices of confirmation of the CPO and 
thereafter to execute and serve any general vesting declarations and/or 
notices to treat and notices of entry, and any other notices or 
correspondence to acquire those interests within the area, including, if 
required, High Court Enforcement Officer notices; and 

(i) referral and conduct of disputes, relating to compulsory purchase 
compensation, to the Upper Tribunal (Lands Chamber). 

 
WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER? 
 
4.0 The overarching aim of the Doncaster Towns Deal is to help to increase 

economic growth with a focus on regeneration, improved transport, better 
broadband connectivity, skills and culture.   

 
Working closely with a range of stakeholders, the Doncaster Station Gateway 
Railway Square Extension and the New Multi-Use Building and Associated 
Public Realm projects have been identified to deliver against a range of 
Doncaster’s needs in terms of providing business space, jobs, and supporting 
other commercial opportunities.  
 
The main benefits of the projects, as outlined in the approved Business Cases 
are as follows; 
 

• Direct land value uplift  

Page 13



| 

• Wider area (indirect) land value uplift  

• Active travel benefits 

• Employment benefits    

• Crime reduction  
 

BACKGROUND   

5.0 On the 6th September 2019 the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government (“MHCLG”) announced the establishment of a £3.6 billion Towns 
Fund to support economic regeneration, with 100 places invited to develop 
proposals for up to £25 million of investment per place.  Doncaster was 
identified by government as a place for which this opportunity would be 
available. 

5.1 Following extensive development with the Doncaster Town Deal board, 
consultation with key stakeholders and members of the public, the Town 
Investment Plan (“TIP”) for Doncaster was submitted to MHCLG in January 
2021.  The TIP effectively contained the ‘bid’ for Towns Deal funding.   

5.2 Following submission of the TIP, MHCLG released the Heads of Terms (“HoT”) 
for Doncaster. The HoT contained the provisional ‘offer’ to Doncaster of £24.8m 
- including constraints, conditions and expected outcomes/outputs.  The Heads 
of Terms were accepted by Doncaster in late June 2021.   

5.3 The next stage was for Doncaster to confirm which projects would be taken 
through to full business case development.  Doncaster submitted project 
confirmation documentation to DLUHC on 26th August 2021.   

5.4 Following review of the project confirmation documentation, DLUHC released 
the Grant Offer Letter for the Doncaster Town Deal on 11th November 2021 
for a total £24.8m allocated to the projects outlined below;  
Project A - Doncaster Gateway: Railway Square Extension (£4.149m 
provisional offer) 
Project B - Doncaster Station Gateway: New Multi-Use Building and 
Associated Public Realm (£20.09m provisional offer) 
Project C – Doncaster Station Gateway: Heritage (£561,000) 

Page 14



| 

5.7      The Grant Offer Letter contained the following detail and conditions: 

a) DLUHC agreed to allocate funding up to £24.8 million across financial 
years 2021/22 to 2025/26; 

b) First payments for projects will be subject to DLUHC’s review and approval 
of Summary Documents and monitoring & evaluation plan (M&E Plan); 

c) Payments in future years will only be made subject to satisfactory spend 
and progress against agreed project milestones, outputs and outcomes; 

d) The agreed funds will be issued annually as non-ring-fenced grant 
payments under Section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003; 

e) Section 151 officers to determine eligible project expenditure, but this must 
be within the total Town Deal award and must support the projects agreed 
by DLUHC. 

5.8 The Project Summary Documents and M&E Plan were approved in August 
2022, which in effect releases the allocated Town Deal funding for delivery of 
the projects outlined above (the “Scheme”). 

5.9 The Major Projects Team has been working with external partners Willmott 
Dixon and Queensberry on progressing the design and development of the 
projects. 

5.10 The Doncaster Gateway: Railway Square Extension scheme will provide a 
significant extension to the recently upgraded Railway Station Forecourt to 
allow connection with the Station Gateway site, allowing greater walkability 
and space for new enterprise.  

 
5.11 The Doncaster Gateway: New Multi-Use Building and Associated Public 

Realm is a keystone development to promote and encourage further 
investment in the Doncaster Gateway site and involves the delivery of a 4-5 
storey office/mixed use building. This is a very significant project, with the 
majority of spend required on the build costs of a new mixed-use building but 
with additional improvements to the wider public realm and connectivity to 
pedestrian and cycle routes. 
 

5.12 Feasibility Work and completion of the RIBA 2 Design stage work has 
developed the project to a costed budget stage. This in turn supports the 
formal CPO, required to support the acquisition of the necessary properties to 
facilitate the scheme, providing the Council with the confidence that the 
proposed Scheme is deliverable. 

 
5.13 In order to progress the project in line with the overarching project delivery 

programme Willmott Dixon were appointed through the Scape Construction 
Framework in August to undertake the remaining Pre-Construction Activities 
incorporating RIBA Stages 3 and 4.   
 

5.14 The Stage 3 design will form the basis of a submission of a full planning 
application in February 2023. Stage 4 of the Pre-Construction Services 

Page 15



| 

Agreement will incorporate technical design including any specialist sub-
contractor design required to ready the scheme to enter the construction 
phase, such as detailed structural design and mechanical and electrical 
services design. 

 
5.15 Following completion of the Pre-Construction Activities outlined above the 

scheme will be ready to progress to construction phase. The current project 
programme is for the works to be commenced in March 2024 to ensure 
completion in advance of the Town Deal funding deadline of March 2026.  

 
 

Property Acquisition and Compulsory Purchase Order 
 
Acquisition 

 
5.16 The proposed locations for the Railway Square Extension and the New Multi-

Use Building and Associated Public Realm schemes forming the site are 
currently occupied by privately owned properties incorporating buildings and 
land, including an office development, a retail wholesaler and a vacant 
property. The Scheme requires the acquisition of these properties, as outlined 
on attached plan drawing (“the Site”). 

 
5.17 As outlined in the report DMBC’s Project Team has been progressing the 

processes required to prepare to take forward the schemes to a full planning 
application, make relevant contractor appointments and secure acquisition of 
the relevant property and land to facilitate the delivery of the schemes. 

 
5.18 Although the Council owns plots within the Site the Scheme’s objectives 

cannot be achieved without the purchase of property and land currently in 
third party ownership. Negotiation with third parties regarding the land has 
been ongoing over the past year and although it is hoped that much of the 
land will eventually be able to be acquired through agreement, there is no 
guarantee on this, or the timing of any such agreement. It is therefore 
considered prudent to progress a CPO as a contingency in case acquisition 
cannot be completed by agreement. 
 

5.19 Acquisitions update; 
 

• Negotiations with affected parties remain ongoing, and the Council’s position 
of looking to acquire all interests by negotiation wherever possible is being 
maintained – further detail can be found in Appendix 1. It should be noted that 
at this stage, although the Council is hopeful of acquiring acquisitions by 
agreement, there is no certainty on timescales regarding taking possession of 
the required sites.   
 
The CPO 

 
5.20 The DLUHC Guidance on Compulsory Purchase Process and the Crichel 

Down Rules (“Guidance”) sets out guidance for acquiring authorities in 
relation to the making of CPOs.   

Page 16



| 

 
5.21 The Council has considered the Guidance in detail against the aspirations of 

the proposed Scheme and the necessity for proceeding by way of CPO. It is 
satisfied that there is a compelling case in the public interest for the making of 
the CPO. This will be set out and analysed in detail in the Statement of 
Reasons. 

 
5.22 The CPO will be progressed under powers contained within the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990, specifically under section 226(1)(a).  The Council 
considers that the criteria within section 226(1)(a) will be satisfied, as the 
benefits that the Scheme will deliver to improve the economic, social and 
environmental wellbeing of the area are significant.  

 
5.23 The timing availability of the funding from Towns Fund is a significant 

justification for the use of the Council’s CPO powers. It is imperative that the 
Council does not lose the opportunity to take advantage of these time limited 
funds, because of a delay to the acquisition of any land within the Site.  The 
current programme requires the Council to take full possession of the Site by 
February 2024 for a start on site by the end of March 2024, to allow for 
completion of the scheme before end of the Town Deal funding deadline of 
March 2026. 

 
5.24 The CPO will require the serving of notices on owners and occupiers of land 

and publication of notices in the local press. Any objections will be considered 
by the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities who will, 
if necessary, call a Public Inquiry.  
 

5.25 If any objections are received, the Council will work with objectors to try and 
accommodate concerns, wherever possible. As stated above the Council is 
committed to acquiring properties through negotiation and will continue to 
negotiate with interested parties. 

A schedule describing each plot of land required including ownership details is 
set out in the Schedule to the CPO Order document. 

5.21 The Council’s Project Team is working with specialist CPO solicitors Browne 
Jacobson who will prepare all the necessary documentation and manage the 
CPO through the full process with assistance from counsel at Inquiry as 
necessary. 

 
5.22 The property acquisition process is on the critical path in terms of the project 

delivery programme. The current programme requires for DMBC take full 
possession of the sites by February 2024 for a start on site by the end of 
March 2024.  The full completion of the scheme is required before end of the 
Town Deal funding deadline of March 2026. 
 

5.23 Whilst the specific date of being granted a public inquiry cannot be 
guaranteed, based on legal advice it is felt that a realistic potential programme 
for the CPO, could be as follows;  
 

Page 17



| 

• Cabinet decision – 2nd November 2022 
• Making Order – 18th November 2022 
• Publish Order - 22nd November 2022 
• End Objection Period - 4th December 2022 
• Submit Order to Secretary of State - 4th January 2023 
• Public Inquiry - 29th November 2023 
• Decision - 2nd March 2024 
• Confirm Order and Making GVD or NTT/NOEry - 3rd July 2024 
• Take Possession Land - 4th July 2024 
• By July 2024 – The final delivery timetable will then be determined by 

when a public inquiry is allocated and decision made by the Secretary 
of State. These timings are all outside the control of the Council. After 
the decision is made, the Council can seek to take possession of the 
land by the Notice to Treat Entry route or by General Vesting 
declaration.  

 
5.25 The programme could be shortened if negotiations to secure the property 

acquisition is successfully completed before the onset of the Public Inquiry.  
The Council will seek to acquire the land needed to construct the scheme by 
negotiation with owners and occupiers but to ensure that any land or interests 
that cannot be acquired by agreement are available for the start of the 
programmed project construction stage  a Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) 
will be prepared in parallel. 

 
5.26 As outlined above the completion of the acquisition of the land through a CPO 

process could potentially extend beyond the current programmed start on site 
date of March 2024. However, there is currently some contingency within the 
programme and it is considered that the scheme could still be completed 
before March 2026 deadline even if the start on site is delayed by a few 
months. 

OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
6.0 The following options have been considered: 
 

(1) Avoid the need to acquire. This is not possible because the Doncaster 
Station Gateway Railway Square Extension and the New Multi-Use 
Building and Associated Public Realm projects and its outputs cannot be 
delivered without acquiring third party land.  

 
(2) Acquire by agreement only. Acquisition of the land required will rely on 

the successful completion of individual negotiations. Whilst landowners 
may be willing to negotiate it is likely that in some cases agreement will 
not be reached. The Doncaster Station Gateway Railway Square 
Extension and the New Multi-Use Building and Associated Public Realm 
projects could not be built as proposed if that occurred. 

 
(3) Acquire by agreement only but process a CPO later if required. This 

option could delay the scheme, risking the delivery of the project within 

Page 18



| 

the Town Deal funding timescale and potential claw back of the funding. 
 
(4) Seek to acquire by agreement with progression of a CPO in parallel. 

This avoids potential delay to the scheme and is the preferred option. 
The CPO process provides a statutory mechanism for objection and 
appropriate compensation, so that interest holders are not 
disadvantaged. CPO also allows the Council to override any third-party 
interests that burden the land and may prevent development. It also 
provides certainty in relation to highway land owned by the Council, but 
to which it does not hold all the relevant historical documents.  

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION 
 
7.0 Without the security of a supporting CPO, failure to secure land by agreement 

could compromise the delivery of the scheme. Option 4 is recommended, 
therefore, so that CPO powers can be used in parallel to negotiations.    

 
 
IMPACT ON THE COUNCIL’S KEY OUTCOMES 
 
8.0 The proposed acquisition of properties will facilitate the delivery of the 

Doncaster Station Gateway Railway Square Extension and the New Multi-Use 
Building and Associated Public Realm schemes. The delivery of these 
schemes will have significant impact for Doncaster and its residents, as 
outlined in the table below: 

 

Great 8 Priority  Positive 
Overall 

Mix of 
Positive & 
Negative 

Trade-
offs to 

consider 
– 

Negative 
overall 

Neutral or 
No 

implications 

 

Tackling Climate 
Change     

Comments: The proposed multi-use building will be net zero carbon in operation 
and designed to BREEAM excellent standard, incorporating sustainable energy 
elements including photovoltaic panels and air source heat pumps. It will also have 
triple glazing systems and a natural cooling system. The building is proposed to be 
car free and will incorporate cycle storage facilities in addition to being located 
directly adjacent the railway station and Frenchgate transport interchange. All these 
factors will contribute to the drive for lower carbon emissions in order to tackle 
climate change.  

Developing the skills 
to thrive in life and in 
work 

    

Page 19



| 

Comments: 

 
Making Doncaster the 
best  
place to do business 
and create good jobs 

    
Comments: The associated delivery of the new multi-use commercial building, 
public realm and infrastructure works will create a top-grade office building with 
ground floor retail units to accommodate a potential 300 new jobs, adding to local 
employment opportunities for Doncaster and the wider City Region. 
 
  

Building opportunities 
for  
healthier, happier and 
longer lives for all 

    
The improvements to the active travel network will provide further opportunities for 
people to travel without the need for a car, whether that is short journeys within the 
immediate vicinity or further afield by connecting safe active travel routes to public 
transport connections. 
 
Inclusion of softer, greener public realm brings multiple benefits to the health and 
wellbeing of our residents.  It allows good quality green space that is free and open 
to everyone.  Green spaces in urban areas also mitigate the effects of pollution and 
can reduce the build-up of urban heat. 
 
 
  

Creating safer, 
stronger,  
greener and cleaner  
communities where 
everyone belongs 

    
Comments: The proposed building will be net zero carbon in operation and 
designed to BREEAM excellent standard with the aspiration for the development to 
be as green as possible. 
In addition, the creation of new public realm with significant soft landscaping with 
enhance the environment of the urban centre location.  

Nurturing a child and  
family-friendly 
borough 

    

Page 20



| 

Comments: 

 
Building Transport 
and digital 
connections fit for the 
future 

    
Comments: 

 Promoting the 
borough and its 
cultural, sporting, and 
heritage opportunities 

    
Comments: 

Fair & Inclusive     
Comments: The building development and public realm scheme will be designed in 
compliance with the Disability Discrimination Act to allow for maximum inclusivity 
and access. 

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Rachel Pritchard.. Date…29.9.2022….. 

9.0 By virtue of Section 226(1)(a) of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990; the 
Council has the power to acquire land compulsorily for the purposes of 
development, redevelopment or improvement if they think that the acquisition 
will facilitate the carrying out of development, redevelopment or improvement 
on, or in relation to, that land and the development, redevelopment or 
improvement is likely to contribute to the promotion or improvement of the 
economic, social or environmental well-being of their area, as is the case here 

9.1 CPO powers should only be used where it is expedient to do so. They should 
only be made where there is a compelling case in the public interest. When 
making and confirming an order acquiring and authorising authorities should 
be sure that the purposes for which the CPO is made justify interfering with 
the human rights of those which have an interest in the land affected in 
consideration of Article 1 of the first Protocol of the Human Rights Act which 
provides for the right to peaceful enjoyment of one’s possessions and not to 
be deprived of them except in the public interest. It is considered therefore 
that there is sufficient evidence that the public benefit of the scheme will 

 

Page 21



| 

outweigh the private loss for the reasons stated in this report and that in this 
instance the land required to be compulsorily purchased belonging to private 
individual interests can be justified as being in the public interest. 

9.2 The Acquisition of Land Act 1981 governs the procedures which apply to 
compulsory acquisitions. Once an order has been made it will be lodged with 
the Secretary of State for confirmation.  Notices will be sent to each interested 
party informing them of the making of the order and notice of the Order will be 
made in the local newspaper for two consecutive weeks.  Any objection to the 
order can be made to the Secretary of State within 21 days from the date of 
notification of the CPO.  If objections are made, unless such objections can be 
negotiated away, the Secretary of State shall hold a public inquiry so that the 
objections and CPO can be considered.  If the Secretary of State is satisfied 
that the CPO is in the public interest and is justified, then the order can be 
confirmed either as previously drafted or with the Secretary of State’s 
modifications.  The Compulsory Purchase Act 1965 governs post completion 
procedures and the Land Compensation Act 1961 governs the amount and 
assessment of compensation. 

9.3 Undertaking negotiations in parallel with preparing and making a CPO is a 
sensible approach. It can help build a good working relationship with those 
whose interests are affected, make the seriousness of the authority’s 
intentions clear from the outset and can help save time at the formal objection 
stage. 

9.4 The decision maker must be aware of their obligations under section 149 
Equality Act 2010, the  Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED). It obliges public 
authorities, when exercising their functions, to have ‘due regard’ to the need 
to: 

a. Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimization and other 
conduct which the Act prohibits; 

b. Advance equality of opportunity; and 
c. Foster good relations between people who share relevant protected 

characteristics and those who do not.  
 

9.5 The relevant protected characteristics under the Equality Act are age, 
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or 
belief, sex and sexual orientation. The duty also covers marriage and civil 
partnerships, but only in respect of eliminating unlawful discrimination. The 
decision maker must ensure that they have seen the equality impact 
assessment/ due regard statement. The duty must be exercised in substance, 
with rigour, and with an open mind and is not a question of ticking boxes. It is 
for the decision-maker to decide how much weight should be given to the 
various factors informing the decision, including how much weight should be 
given to the PSED itself. The duty is a continuing one and there should be a 
record/audit trail of how due regard has been shown. It is not sufficient for due 
regard to be a “rear-guard action” following a concluded decision The decision 
maker must also pay regard to any countervailing factors and decide the 
weight to be given to these, which it is proper and reasonable to consider; 
budgetary pressures, economics and practical factors will often be important. 

 

Page 22



| 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS [Officer Initials…OB  Date……23.09.2022………] 
 
10.0 The Station Gateway Schemes, the acceptance of the associated Towns 

Deal grant funding and the additional contribution from the Councils 
Investment and Modernisation Fund were all approved by Cabinet on the 8th 
June 2022. The funding approved for these schemes included allocations for 
the acquisition of the properties as outlined in this report. The estimated costs 
of these acquisitions and associated fees, remain within the values approved. 

 
10.1 The additional costs of the CPOs are included in the approved scheme cost 

estimates. These are estimated to be £9k for external solicitors’ fees and 
£15k for District Valuers fee. These costs are expected to be covered by the 
Towns Deal grant. 

 
10.2 However, negotiations are continuing and there is still risk that costs could 

increase further, and other sources of funding may need to be secured. 
Although the CPO powers are expected to reduce this risk and provide clarity 
and structure for negotiating the compensation, the disturbance element of 
the claim remain largely unknown until relocation premises are found and the 
finer details of the business and its profitability are known.  

 
10.3 Additional funding options outlined in Appendix 1.  
 
10.4 Whilst negotiations are progressing well, the parallel preparation of a CPO 

should help to ensure that grant milestones are met including the deadline for 
completion of schemes by March 2026. This should ensure that any risks of 
clawback or withheld funds are minimised. 

 
10.5 Whilst it is the case that the Council could potentially disengage from the 

CPO process at any point prior to making the purchases, there are some risk 
factors of doing this to consider. There could be abortive costs to date for 
works undertaken prior to the withdrawal. Third parties could serve claims for 
compensation if they have incurred costs. There is also the issue of blight to 
consider where owners could potentially be entitled to force the sale of their 
property. 

 
10.6 The completion of the acquisition of the land through a CPO process could 

potentially extend beyond the current programmed start on site date of March 
2024. However, there is enough flexibility within the programme that would 
allow the scheme to be completed by the March 2026 deadline even if the 
start on site was delayed by a few months. 

 
HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS [Officer Initials: KJ | Date: 11/10/2022) 
 
11.0 There are no direct HR Imps in relation to this ODR, but if in future staff are 

affected or additional specialist are required then further consultation will 
need to take place with HR. 

 
 

Page 23



| 

TECHNOLOGY IMPLICATIONS [Officer Initials..PW Date..27/09/22] 
 
12.0 There are no direct technology implications relating to the recommendations 

in this report.  However, Digital & ICT will need to feed into the stage 3 design 
phase of the projects to advise in relation to the required technology 
infrastructure and/or changes to the Councils private fibre optic network 
(DPON), where applicable.  Any associated technology costs would need to 
be met from the overall scheme budget.   

Page 24



| 

 

RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

13.0 Full delivery of the scheme hinges on the site assembly process. Securing a 
CPO removes any uncertainty as to the ability to gain ownership to all areas 
within the scheme boundary. Not having a CPO in place increases the risk of 
full site assembly not being achievable. 

13.1 In common with all CPOs there could be a public inquiry with its consequent 
cost, plus the time and effort of Council Officers. The right to be heard at a 
public inquiry only applies to persons who have interests affected by the Order 
and objections on ground of inadequate valuation of land is not a ground for 
objection. However, the Council need to be prepared to commit time and 
resources to the public inquiry process.  

13.2 There is a risk that the Council’s justification for the CPO will not be supported 
by the Secretary of State and the CPO will not be confirmed. The Council has 
sought counsel’s advice on the prospects of success and has brought in 
Browne Jacobson to advise on the legal process. The Council is therefore 
confident it is in a strong position to secure the CPO. Nevertheless, the 
Council should retain suitable counsel to represent it at any inquiry in order to 
ensure that the Council’s case is presented as well as it can. Decisions about 
whether any external experts are required can await a review of the nature of 
any objections. 

13.3    Having CPO powers in place provides a structure for calculating the 
compensation figure through an established set of permissible heads of claim. 
It provides clarity on the basis for compensation for all parties involved. Not 
having the CPO powers in place increases the risk of over inflated financial 
aspirations on behalf of the affected parties. Once an order is confirmed the 
Council can vest the land in itself within 3 months of making a General 
Vesting Declaration. Therefore, the Council can carry on developing the land 
even though at that stage the compensation has not been settled. 

13.4 Whilst there is an established set of heads of claim for the compensation, 
negotiation will need to be carried out with each relevant party and therefore 
estimates have been provided as to the level of compensation that may be 
required for the scheme but there is risk of the costs being higher than 
anticipated. This is due to the disturbance element of the claim being largely 
unknown until relocation premises are found and the finer details of the 
business and its profitability are known. 

13.5   The CPO powers will only be used over third party land as a last resort and 
the Council remain committed to acquiring the relevant interests through 
negotiation wherever possible. However, having the CPO in the background 
will provide additional certainty over acquisitions and timings. 

13.6 Risk that the completion of acquisitions and compensation settlements are not 
agreed until post scheme. Referral to Upper Chamber for third party 
determination can take place up to 6 years after taking entry on site. Whilst 

Page 25



| 

this is not anticipated to be an issue, it is possible that compensation claims 
will remain unsettled post scheme delivery. 

13.7 Areas of Highway Land within the site are unregistered and the Council 
cannot be confident it holds all relevant historical documents. Including these 
areas within the CPO will provide the Council will absolute certainty on 
ownership. 

13.8 The completion of the acquisition of the land through a CPO process could 
potentially extend beyond the current programmed start on site date of March 
2024. However, there is currently some contingency within the programme 
and it is considered that the scheme could still be completed before March 
2026 deadline even if the start on site is delayed by a few months.  

13.9 Despite the risks set out above, it is considered that proceeding by CPO is the 
most suitable course of action, putting into motion a sequence of events that 
(subject to confirmation by the Secretary of State) provides certainty to the 
Council and the development).  

CONSULTATION 

14.0 Contact with some of the affected landowners has already taken place in 
order to carry out site surveys for scheme preparation. This has enabled 
DMBC to start consultation with a view to acquisition of land by agreement. 
Landowners have, to date, been amenable to granting access and there has 
not been any strong opposition expressed so far.  

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

15.0  Cabinet Report 8th June – Doncaster Town Deal – Station Gateway Projects 

GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 
16.0  
 
CPO Compulsory Purchase Order  
DLUHC Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 
MHCLG Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 

Government 
TIP Town Investment Plan 
HoT Heads of Terms 
RIBA Royal Institute of British Architects 
 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTORS 
 
Neil Firth, Head of Major Projects and Investment 
01302 735002 neil.firth@doncaster.gov.uk 
 

Page 26

mailto:neil.firth@doncaster.gov.uk


| 

Simon Rhodes, Project Manager, Major Projects Team 
01302 736750 simon.rhodes@doncaster.gov.uk 
 
Joanne Chipp-Smith, Principal Surveyor, Assets and Property 
01302 734476 joanne.chipp-smith@doncaster.gov.uk 
 
Jonathan Allen, Senior Associate, Browne Jacobson Solicitors 

 
Dan Swaine 
Director of Economy and Environment 
 

Page 27

mailto:simon.rhodes@doncaster.gov.uk
mailto:joanne.chipp-smith@doncaster.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



3

1

4

4

1

2

8

1

4

6

1

1

5

8

7
3

7

1

4

1

5

5

2

6

3

63

84

24

25

34

47

13

23

12

78
95

87

88

85

90

69
71

75
77

10

94

73
81

86

80

64

89

90

LB

FB

El

43

33

14

79

87
88

83
85

65

82

89

34

76

45

84
86

23

33

22

13

PH

PH

PH

PH

PH

PH

PH

14
5

12
2

13
5

11
8

Sta
Sub

12
0

15
4

Post

Bank

Shops

Grain

ST
RE

ET

Flying

Garage

Rising

Subway

Centre

15
2 1

50

2 to 20
BU

RN
AB

Y
1 to 15

Shelter Car
Park

51
 to

 57

35 to 37

Car Park

Scotsman

Fountain

Car Park

Car Park

Bollards

Shelters

Brigade HQ

12
7 t

o 1
33

Signal Box

El Sub Sta

Danum House

UNION
STREET

CH
AN

CE
RY

 PL
AC

E

WEST STREET

WEST STREET

Lin
e o

f P
os

ts

Lin
e o

f P
ost

s

Line of Posts

South Mall

PORTLA
ND

PLACE

GORDON
STREET

The King's Arcade

STEWART STREET

TRAFFORD COURT

SPRING GARDENS

(Station)
Doncaster

TRAFFORD WAY
WEST L

AITH GATE

St Johns Ambulance

(c) Crown copyright. License Number 100019782. 2009.
 (c) Copyright GeoInformation Group 1997, 2002, 2005 and 2007.

Doncaster Town Deal Plan ®

Completed By :
rachaelr

Date :
23/05/2022

Map Reference: Scale :
1:1,309Doncaster Town Deal CPO Plan

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 31

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6. Approval to Receive Safer Streets (Round Four) Grant Funding from the Home Office.
	1.	Doncaster has been notified that the application for Safer Streets (Round Four) Home Office funding has been successful and the City has been awarded £750,000, which is the largest amount awarded to any single Council in South Yorkshire.
	2.	The grant funding will support various CCTV, solar lighting and educational schemes across the borough (see appendix a). These schemes were identified in consultation with a range of stakeholders and will greatly enhance the city’s CCTV and lighting infrastructure and importantly assist in tackling neighbourhood crime, anti-social behaviour and Violence against Women and Girls (VAWG) as set out in the criteria of the grant.
	3.	A designated project team has been established to ensure that the individual projects are delivered within the timescales set out in the grant criteria. Also ensuring that projects are monitored, and any potential risks are identified mitigated and escalated where necessary. Progress reports will be compiled and delivered to the Safer Doncaster Partnership (SSDP) at regular intervals.
	4.	This is not an exempt report.
	RECOMMENDATIONS
	5.	To note the content of the report and to accept receipt of the £750k Safer Streets (Round 4) Grant Fund from The Home Office.
	6.	To note the schedule of projects in (Appendix A) which were all identified and agreed in consultation with stakeholders including Local Ward Members and further informed by data analysis.
	8.	We have received notification from the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner that Doncaster will receive £750k of funding from the fourth round of the Home Office Safer Streets fund.
	9.	Doncaster City submitted a single bid as part of a wider countywide process alongside Sheffield, Rotherham and Barnsley Councils. The bid was quality assured by the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner before being forwarded to the Home Office.
	10.	Each Local Authority area was able to submit a bid up to a maximum of £750,000, which would be split over 2 consecutive years (£500,000 in the first year and a further £250,000 over the period ending in September 2023).
	11.	Doncaster’s bid was to the value of the maximum amount of £750k and represents the highest award to a single council within South Yorkshire. Included in our bid was a 50% match funding element and this includes officer time, existing investment e.g. future parks funding, or costs for monitoring and maintaining CCTV cameras.
	12.	The primary focus of the new fund was based on the three specific criteria’s specified as follows:
	Tackling Neighbourhood Crime,
	Violence against Women and Girls,
	Anti-Social Behaviour.
	Doncaster’s bid incorporated all three of these elements and focused upon a number of areas across the City, which were chosen through engagement and consultation with Localities, Lead Ward Members and Area Managers.
	13.	Part of the funding will include installation of lighting and CCTV, which will assist in improving perceptions of safety and help to detect and reduce anti-social behaviour and neighbourhood crime. The additional CCTV will align with the wider strategic objective to improve CCTV throughout Doncaster. All locality areas will benefit from the 52 new cameras funded through this scheme.
	14.	In addition, the funding will provide highway improvements, in the area of Lower Wheatley and Thorne Road, an area identified as suffering from high levels of crime, perceptions of safety and anti-social behaviour.
	15.	In addition, across the City, there will be a programme established to deliver safer streets training to key partners and an exciting youth coaching programme in schools to tackle youth related anti-social behaviour focused on young people aged 10 to 17.
	16.	In terms of administering and monitoring the funding, we have established a stakeholder group to consult and approve the key elements of the scheme. Regular progress reports will be provided to the Safer Stronger Doncaster Partnership (SSDP) and each locality area.
	17.	As with previous awards from the Home Office Safer Streets Fund, there are tight timescales, which we will need to follow. All the funding has to be spent by 30th September 2023 and there is a requirement to deliver the requisite amount of match funding by March 2024.
	18.	Present a business case to the Senior Management Team seeking approval to use grant funding from the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner in a specified way.
	19. This is not viewed as a viable option, as without the required approval to use grant funding in this way; we may risk non-compliance with financial regulations.  Should we not take up the option to utilise this funding, it would mean that a number of important projects for this area would not go ahead.
	20.	The additional grant funding would enable the Council and our partners to deliver on our key priorities, respond to emerging challenges and facilitate our ability to support local initiatives and activities. It would also enable the Council and SSDP to continue to tackle the key priorities identified within the Community Safety strategy and our Great 8 priorities, detailed below:
	22.	Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 provides the Council with a general power of competence, allowing the Council to do anything that individuals generally may do. Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 gives the Council power to purchase goods and services.
	23. The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 makes it clear that tackling crime should be a partnership matter, with key local organisations working together to achieve a shared strategy for the benefit of local communities.
	24. The purchase of any goods and services using the funding should be carried out in accordance with funder requirements & the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules.
	25. Legal advice should be sought upon the grant agreement.
	26. Acceptance of the £750k grant is subject to key decision rules and will need to be approved by CFO and relevant director as per Financial Procedure Rule E.9 “Directors are authorised to apply for external funding, in consultation with the CFO, which contribute to the delivery of Council services or achievement of Council goals. Grant acceptance and/or commitment is subject to key decision rules”.
	27. The total proposed grant is £750k, £500k will be funded in 22/23 and must be spent by 31st March 23 and £250k will be funded in 23/24 and must be spent by  30th September 23. The proposed grant will be fully funded from the Home Office Safer Streets Fund and a signed agreement is required to accept the funding. There is a 50% match funding element which will be provided by officer time, existing investment e.g. future parks funding, or costs for monitoring and maintaining CCTV cameras, this must be spent by 31st March 2024. The service will need to ensure the timescales are managed in accordance with the grant conditions in order to avoid the council incurring costs that they are unable to claim for. Grant claims must be submitted each quarter by the 14th of the following month.
	Capital

	29. The capital cost amount is £550k for the installation of CCTV along with other crime/anti-social behaviour reduction tools and highway improvements as stated in the body of this report. Contingency hasn’t been included in these figures as they are based on quotes from the framework agreement.
	30. As the Adults Health and Wellbeing Capital Programme does not currently include this scheme as per Financial Procedure Rule B.9. The CFO is responsible for agreeing any in-year additions to the capital programme. Following the CFO agreement and before any commitment to spend, a project specific report in line with key decision rules is required to approve the capital project for inclusion in the capital programme. Approval is sought in this report. A CAP1 form has been submitted and circulated to CAMP Board members.
	Revenue

	31. The revenue cost amount is £200k for delivering safer streets training to key partners to tackle youth related anti-social behaviour as stated in the body of this report.
	32. The on-going maintenance costs are initially expected to be minimal but could equate to £1k per year per camera per annum. This will need to be funded from existing revenue budgets within community safety.
	33. There are no HR implications associated within this report.
	34. There are no technology implications in relation to the receipt of grant funding from the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) following the successful award of the safer streets (Round 4) funding from the Home Office.  However, it is essential that Digital & ICT continue to be fully involved (via the TGB process) in all new CCTV projects to agree on the proposed designs and logical and physical security etc.
	Health Implications [Officer Initials: RS | Date: 19.08.22]
	35. Safety and the perception of safety have direct and indirect impacts on health. This funding should help address these issues. Decision makers will want to assure themselves that the impacts of the funding are monitored and that the funding addresses the areas most effected by neighbourhood crime, violence against women and girls and anti-social behaviour.
	Equality Implications [Officer Initials: BH | Date: 12.08.22]
	36.Equality impact assessments completed during the development of the Community Safety Strategy and other key partnership strategies identified that the Partnership and DMBC deliver key services to under-represented groups and individuals with protected characteristics.
	37. The proposals for use of this grant funding enables the Partnership and ourselves as a public authority to discharge our responsibilities effectively within the terms of the Equality Act, ensuring that our services do not tolerate prohibited behaviours and we actively work to reduce discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and the fostering of good relations.
	38.	The potential risks of the project are failing to complete the planned work before the funding deadline of 30th September 2023. To mitigate this, a project coordinator has already been appointed for each area and a wider project group from all involved services has been established, supported by a full project plan.
	39.	The cabinet lead for Community Safety, Councillor Rachael Blake, has been consulted on the proposal, alongside lead locality ward members.
	40.	Regular updates regarding the grant activity will be provided to the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner by the stakeholder group.

	6. Approval to Receive Safer Streets (Round Four) Grant Funding from the Home Office.
	i6 cab 021122 - Appendices Streets Round 4

	7. To approve the commencement of a Compulsory Purchase Order for the acquisition of properties necessary to deliver the Doncaster Town Deal project. (Appendix 1 to the report is not for publication because it contains exempt information by Virtue of Paragraph 3, of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, as if it contains exempt information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information.)
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	1.0	This report sets out the requirement for the Council to have the ability to acquire key strategic properties to facilitate the delivery of the Doncaster Towns Deal projects and seeks approval to commence a formal Compulsory Purchase Order (“CPO”) in this regard.
	1.1	At its meeting on 8th June 2022 Cabinet approved the submission to the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (“DLUHC”) of the Project Summary Business Cases for the Station Gateway Projects (Project A – Railway Square Extension and Project B – New Multi-Use Building and Associated Public Realm), confirming the intention of Doncaster Council to secure a combined £24,239,000 Town Deal funding towards the delivery of the schemes. These have now been approved and the funding for the projects has been released accordingly for use on delivery of the projects.
	1.2	In addition, Cabinet delegated authority to the Director of Economy and Environment, in consultation with the Director of Corporate Services, to acquire by agreement with landowner, the property and land required for the construction of the Station Gateway projects.
	1.4	The Council’s Assets team has commenced discussions with the owners of the three target properties. Negotiations are progressing well in most cases and are continuing. However, to ensure that any land or interests that cannot be acquired by agreement are available for the start of construction, a CPO will be prepared in parallel.
	1.5	The justification for the CPO will be outlined in the Statement of Reasons which is summarised within this report. Subject to Cabinet’s approval it is the intended to formally commence the CPO process in November following the Cabinet call in period. A potential timetable for the CPO process is outlined in this report.
	EXEMPT REPORT
	2.0	Whilst this report is not exempt it does contain an exempt Appendix 1. Appendix 1 is not for publication because it contains exempt information by Virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, as if it contains exempt information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information.
	RECOMMENDATIONS
	3.0	Cabinet is recommended to:
	3.1	Authorise the making of a CPO under section 226(1)(a) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (“TCPA 1990") within the area edged red on the draft Order Map for the purposes of facilitating development, redevelopment, and improvement of the Site; and,
	3.2	Authorise the Director of Economy and Environment in consultation with the Director of Corporate Services, following consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing and Business, to effect the making, confirmation, and implementation of the CPO and to take all necessary steps to give effect to the CPO in respect of the Order Land including, but not limited to, the following procedural steps:
	(a) finalise a Statement of Reasons setting out the Council's reasons for making the CPO;
	(b) making the CPO, the publication and service of any press, site and individual notices and other correspondence for such making;
	(c) acquire all interests and new rights within the Order Land as may be   necessary to facilitate the Scheme, either by agreement or compulsorily, including entering into negotiations with any third parties for the acquisition of their land interests; the payment of compensation and dealing with any blight notices served in connection with the CPO;
	(d) approve agreements with landowners or statutory undertakers as applicable, setting out the terms for withdrawal of any objections to the CPO, including where appropriate seeking exclusion of land from the CPO;
	(e) make any necessary additions, deletions, or amendments to the Order Land and to seek any requisite modifications to the CPO Order and any CPO maps.
	(f) the preparation and presentation of the Council's case at any Public Inquiry which may be necessary.
	(g) seek confirmation of the CPO by the Secretary of State (or, if permitted, by the Council pursuant to Section 14A of the Acquisition of Land Act 1981) (the 1981 Act);
	(h) publication and service of notices of confirmation of the CPO and thereafter to execute and serve any general vesting declarations and/or notices to treat and notices of entry, and any other notices or correspondence to acquire those interests within the area, including, if required, High Court Enforcement Officer notices; and
	(i) referral and conduct of disputes, relating to compulsory purchase compensation, to the Upper Tribunal (Lands Chamber).
	WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER?
	4.0	The overarching aim of the Doncaster Towns Deal is to help to increase economic growth with a focus on regeneration, improved transport, better broadband connectivity, skills and culture.
	Working closely with a range of stakeholders, the Doncaster Station Gateway Railway Square Extension and the New Multi-Use Building and Associated Public Realm projects have been identified to deliver against a range of Doncaster’s needs in terms of providing business space, jobs, and supporting other commercial opportunities.
	The main benefits of the projects, as outlined in the approved Business Cases are as follows;
		Direct land value uplift
		Wider area (indirect) land value uplift
		Active travel benefits
		Employment benefits
		Crime reduction
	BACKGROUND
	5.0	On the 6th September 2019 the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government (“MHCLG”) announced the establishment of a £3.6 billion Towns Fund to support economic regeneration, with 100 places invited to develop proposals for up to £25 million of investment per place.  Doncaster was identified by government as a place for which this opportunity would be available.
	5.1	Following extensive development with the Doncaster Town Deal board, consultation with key stakeholders and members of the public, the Town Investment Plan (“TIP”) for Doncaster was submitted to MHCLG in January 2021.  The TIP effectively contained the ‘bid’ for Towns Deal funding.
	5.2	Following submission of the TIP, MHCLG released the Heads of Terms (“HoT”) for Doncaster. The HoT contained the provisional ‘offer’ to Doncaster of £24.8m - including constraints, conditions and expected outcomes/outputs.  The Heads of Terms were accepted by Doncaster in late June 2021.
	5.3	The next stage was for Doncaster to confirm which projects would be taken through to full business case development.  Doncaster submitted project confirmation documentation to DLUHC on 26th August 2021.
	5.4	Following review of the project confirmation documentation, DLUHC released the Grant Offer Letter for the Doncaster Town Deal on 11th November 2021 for a total £24.8m allocated to the projects outlined below;
	Project A - Doncaster Gateway: Railway Square Extension (£4.149m provisional offer)
	Project B - Doncaster Station Gateway: New Multi-Use Building and Associated Public Realm (£20.09m provisional offer)
	Project C – Doncaster Station Gateway: Heritage (£561,000)
	5.7      The Grant Offer Letter contained the following detail and conditions:
	a)	DLUHC agreed to allocate funding up to £24.8 million across financial years 2021/22 to 2025/26;
	b)	First payments for projects will be subject to DLUHC’s review and approval of Summary Documents and monitoring & evaluation plan (M&E Plan);
	c)	Payments in future years will only be made subject to satisfactory spend and progress against agreed project milestones, outputs and outcomes;
	d)	The agreed funds will be issued annually as non-ring-fenced grant payments under Section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003;
	e)	Section 151 officers to determine eligible project expenditure, but this must be within the total Town Deal award and must support the projects agreed by DLUHC.
	5.8	The Project Summary Documents and M&E Plan were approved in August 2022, which in effect releases the allocated Town Deal funding for delivery of the projects outlined above (the “Scheme”).
	5.9	The Major Projects Team has been working with external partners Willmott Dixon and Queensberry on progressing the design and development of the projects.
	OPTIONS CONSIDERED
	REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION

	IMPACT ON THE COUNCIL’S KEY OUTCOMES
	8.0	The proposed acquisition of properties will facilitate the delivery of the Doncaster Station Gateway Railway Square Extension and the New Multi-Use Building and Associated Public Realm schemes. The delivery of these schemes will have significant impact for Doncaster and its residents, as outlined in the table below:
	LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Rachel Pritchard.. Date…29.9.2022…..
	9.0	By virtue of Section 226(1)(a) of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990; the Council has the power to acquire land compulsorily for the purposes of development, redevelopment or improvement if they think that the acquisition will facilitate the carrying out of development, redevelopment or improvement on, or in relation to, that land and the development, redevelopment or improvement is likely to contribute to the promotion or improvement of the economic, social or environmental well-being of their area, as is the case here
	9.1	CPO powers should only be used where it is expedient to do so. They should only be made where there is a compelling case in the public interest. When making and confirming an order acquiring and authorising authorities should be sure that the purposes for which the CPO is made justify interfering with the human rights of those which have an interest in the land affected in consideration of Article 1 of the first Protocol of the Human Rights Act which provides for the right to peaceful enjoyment of one’s possessions and not to be deprived of them except in the public interest. It is considered therefore that there is sufficient evidence that the public benefit of the scheme will outweigh the private loss for the reasons stated in this report and that in this instance the land required to be compulsorily purchased belonging to private individual interests can be justified as being in the public interest.
	9.2	The Acquisition of Land Act 1981 governs the procedures which apply to compulsory acquisitions. Once an order has been made it will be lodged with the Secretary of State for confirmation.  Notices will be sent to each interested party informing them of the making of the order and notice of the Order will be made in the local newspaper for two consecutive weeks.  Any objection to the order can be made to the Secretary of State within 21 days from the date of notification of the CPO.  If objections are made, unless such objections can be negotiated away, the Secretary of State shall hold a public inquiry so that the objections and CPO can be considered.  If the Secretary of State is satisfied that the CPO is in the public interest and is justified, then the order can be confirmed either as previously drafted or with the Secretary of State’s modifications.  The Compulsory Purchase Act 1965 governs post completion procedures and the Land Compensation Act 1961 governs the amount and assessment of compensation.
	9.3	Undertaking negotiations in parallel with preparing and making a CPO is a sensible approach. It can help build a good working relationship with those whose interests are affected, make the seriousness of the authority’s intentions clear from the outset and can help save time at the formal objection stage.
	FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS [Officer Initials…OB  Date……23.09.2022………]
	10.0	The Station Gateway Schemes, the acceptance of the associated Towns Deal grant funding and the additional contribution from the Councils Investment and Modernisation Fund were all approved by Cabinet on the 8th June 2022. The funding approved for these schemes included allocations for the acquisition of the properties as outlined in this report. The estimated costs of these acquisitions and associated fees, remain within the values approved.
	10.1	The additional costs of the CPOs are included in the approved scheme cost estimates. These are estimated to be £9k for external solicitors’ fees and £15k for District Valuers fee. These costs are expected to be covered by the Towns Deal grant.
	10.2	However, negotiations are continuing and there is still risk that costs could increase further, and other sources of funding may need to be secured. Although the CPO powers are expected to reduce this risk and provide clarity and structure for negotiating the compensation, the disturbance element of the claim remain largely unknown until relocation premises are found and the finer details of the business and its profitability are known.
	10.3	Additional funding options outlined in Appendix 1.
	10.4	Whilst negotiations are progressing well, the parallel preparation of a CPO should help to ensure that grant milestones are met including the deadline for completion of schemes by March 2026. This should ensure that any risks of clawback or withheld funds are minimised.
	10.5	Whilst it is the case that the Council could potentially disengage from the CPO process at any point prior to making the purchases, there are some risk factors of doing this to consider. There could be abortive costs to date for works undertaken prior to the withdrawal. Third parties could serve claims for compensation if they have incurred costs. There is also the issue of blight to consider where owners could potentially be entitled to force the sale of their property.
	10.6	The completion of the acquisition of the land through a CPO process could potentially extend beyond the current programmed start on site date of March 2024. However, there is enough flexibility within the programme that would allow the scheme to be completed by the March 2026 deadline even if the start on site was delayed by a few months.
	HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS [Officer Initials: KJ | Date: 11/10/2022)
	11.0	There are no direct HR Imps in relation to this ODR, but if in future staff are affected or additional specialist are required then further consultation will need to take place with HR.
	TECHNOLOGY IMPLICATIONS [Officer Initials..PW Date..27/09/22]
	12.0	There are no direct technology implications relating to the recommendations in this report.  However, Digital & ICT will need to feed into the stage 3 design phase of the projects to advise in relation to the required technology infrastructure and/or changes to the Councils private fibre optic network (DPON), where applicable.  Any associated technology costs would need to be met from the overall scheme budget.
	RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS
	13.0	Full delivery of the scheme hinges on the site assembly process. Securing a CPO removes any uncertainty as to the ability to gain ownership to all areas within the scheme boundary. Not having a CPO in place increases the risk of full site assembly not being achievable.
	13.1	In common with all CPOs there could be a public inquiry with its consequent cost, plus the time and effort of Council Officers. The right to be heard at a public inquiry only applies to persons who have interests affected by the Order and objections on ground of inadequate valuation of land is not a ground for objection. However, the Council need to be prepared to commit time and resources to the public inquiry process.
	13.2	There is a risk that the Council’s justification for the CPO will not be supported by the Secretary of State and the CPO will not be confirmed. The Council has sought counsel’s advice on the prospects of success and has brought in Browne Jacobson to advise on the legal process. The Council is therefore confident it is in a strong position to secure the CPO. Nevertheless, the Council should retain suitable counsel to represent it at any inquiry in order to ensure that the Council’s case is presented as well as it can. Decisions about whether any external experts are required can await a review of the nature of any objections.
	13.3    Having CPO powers in place provides a structure for calculating the compensation figure through an established set of permissible heads of claim. It provides clarity on the basis for compensation for all parties involved. Not having the CPO powers in place increases the risk of over inflated financial aspirations on behalf of the affected parties. Once an order is confirmed the Council can vest the land in itself within 3 months of making a General Vesting Declaration. Therefore, the Council can carry on developing the land even though at that stage the compensation has not been settled.
	13.4	Whilst there is an established set of heads of claim for the compensation, negotiation will need to be carried out with each relevant party and therefore estimates have been provided as to the level of compensation that may be required for the scheme but there is risk of the costs being higher than anticipated. This is due to the disturbance element of the claim being largely unknown until relocation premises are found and the finer details of the business and its profitability are known.
	13.5   The CPO powers will only be used over third party land as a last resort and the Council remain committed to acquiring the relevant interests through negotiation wherever possible. However, having the CPO in the background will provide additional certainty over acquisitions and timings.
	13.6	Risk that the completion of acquisitions and compensation settlements are not agreed until post scheme. Referral to Upper Chamber for third party determination can take place up to 6 years after taking entry on site. Whilst this is not anticipated to be an issue, it is possible that compensation claims will remain unsettled post scheme delivery.
	13.7	Areas of Highway Land within the site are unregistered and the Council cannot be confident it holds all relevant historical documents. Including these areas within the CPO will provide the Council will absolute certainty on ownership.
	13.8	The completion of the acquisition of the land through a CPO process could potentially extend beyond the current programmed start on site date of March 2024. However, there is currently some contingency within the programme and it is considered that the scheme could still be completed before March 2026 deadline even if the start on site is delayed by a few months.
	13.9	Despite the risks set out above, it is considered that proceeding by CPO is the most suitable course of action, putting into motion a sequence of events that (subject to confirmation by the Secretary of State) provides certainty to the Council and the development).
	CONSULTATION
	14.0	Contact with some of the affected landowners has already taken place in order to carry out site surveys for scheme preparation. This has enabled DMBC to start consultation with a view to acquisition of land by agreement. Landowners have, to date, been amenable to granting access and there has not been any strong opposition expressed so far.
	BACKGROUND PAPERS
	15.0 	Cabinet Report 8th June – Doncaster Town Deal – Station Gateway Projects
	GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS
	16.0
	REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTORS
	Neil Firth, Head of Major Projects and Investment
	01302 735002 neil.firth@doncaster.gov.uk
	Simon Rhodes, Project Manager, Major Projects Team
	01302 736750 simon.rhodes@doncaster.gov.uk
	Joanne Chipp-Smith, Principal Surveyor, Assets and Property
	01302 734476 joanne.chipp-smith@doncaster.gov.uk
	Jonathan Allen, Senior Associate, Browne Jacobson Solicitors

	Dan Swaine
	Director of Economy and Environment


	7. To approve the commencement of a Compulsory Purchase Order for the acquisition of properties necessary to deliver the Doncaster Town Deal project. (Appendix 1 to the report is not for publication because it contains exempt information by Virtue of Paragraph 3, of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, as if it contains exempt information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information.)
	i7 cab 021122 - CPO Town Deals - Red line boundary plan (The Site)

	7. To approve the commencement of a Compulsory Purchase Order for the acquisition of properties necessary to deliver the Doncaster Town Deal project. (Appendix 1 to the report is not for publication because it contains exempt information by Virtue of Paragraph 3, of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, as if it contains exempt information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information.)
	i7 cab 021122 - NOT FOR PUBLICATION - EXEMPT - Appendix 1


